ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
April 11, 2001
2:51 p.m

VEVMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Chair
Senat or Loren Lenman, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Jerry Ward

Senat or Bettye Davis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 135
"An Act relating to nental health information and records; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 135( HES) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 116
"An Act relating to the Al aska tenporary assistance progran and
providing for an effective date."”

MOVED CSSB 116( HES) OUT OF COW TTEE

CONTI NUATI ON OF MEDI CAl D PRESENTATI ON BY THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

SB 135 - See HESS m nutes dated 4/9/01.
SB 116 - See HESS m nutes dated 4/9/01.
W TNESS REG STER

El mer Lindstrom
Speci al Assi st ant
Department of Health &
Soci al Servi ces
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned the provisions of CSSB 135(HES).

Bob Labbe, Director

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2001



Di vi sion of Medi cal Assi stance
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformati on about the Medicaid
Pr ogram

John Sherwood
Di vi sion of Medical Assi stance
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformati on about the Medicai d
Program

Jim Nordlund, Director
Di vi sion of Public Assistance
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned the changes in CSSB 116( HES) .

Commi ssi oner Karen Perdue
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided informati on on the Medicaid
Program

Mary Diven
Di vi sion of Medical Assistance
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the Medicaid Early
Screeni ng and Detection Programfor Breast and Cervical Cancer.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-32, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAl RAMOVAN LYDA GREEN cal | ed the Senate Heal th, Education & Soci al
Services Conmttee neeting to order at 2:51 p.m Al nenbers were
present. The first order of business to conme before the commttee

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 11, 2001



was SB 135.

#SB 135
SB 135- MENTAL HEALTH | NFORVATI ON_AND RECORDS

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt CSSB 135(HES), Version C, as the
wor ki ng docunent of the conmittee. There being no objection, the
notion carri ed.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked M. Elner Lindstromto describe the changes
made in the commttee substitute.

MR. ELMER LINDSTROM explained that in Decenber of 2000, a
| egi sl ative audit was rel eased that took the Departnent of Health
and Social Services (DHSS) to task for its inability to gather
client-specific data from conmunity nental health centers for
persons served with general fund grant dollars. Conmunity health
centers are funded through two nmechani sns; one being Medicaid and
the other a grant-in-aid program DHSS has very good data on
clients served through Medicaid but the sanme type of data is not
collected for services provided wth grant-in-aid dollars.
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit (LBA) pointed out that DHSS ought to
know t he cost per client, who is served, the services provided and
the outconmes of clients who receive services fromthe grant-in-aid
dol | ars. DHSS concurs with the legislative audit, however the
statute is very anbiguous as to DHSS' s authority to collect that
i nformation, which CSSB 135(HES) will clarify. DHSS has a | ot of
experience dealing with confidentiality issues; virtually every
di vision has confidential records. He is frequently asked by the
| egi sl ature why DHSS cannot nmeke nore information avail abl e rather
t han bei ng accosted for |eaking informtion.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if DHSS has a system for archiving or purging
records that are no | onger useful.

MR. LI NDSTROM said he does not know the exact procedure but he
guessed that nost records are ultinmately archived or destroyed.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN referred to page 30 of the legislative audit and
read:

Wthout this ability, the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces cannot identify the total population of nental
health clients served, nor detect if Medicaid paynents
are being nmade for clients also funded through state
grants.

She noted that feeds in with cost contai nnment efforts underway by

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 11, 2001



the Legislature. She pointed out that regarding confidentiality,
the sane information is required of an insurance conpany. She
informed conmittee nenbers that Pat Davidson from Legislative
Budget and Audit was present to answer any questions nenbers may
have.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said that SB 135 is prospective and she is
concerned that nmany people are being asked to offer information but
have refused. She asked M. Lindstromif it would be hel pful to
put a retroactive clause in the bill

MR. LINDSTROM clarified that the commttee substitute contains a
retroactive clause. He stated that although a retroactive clause
makes sense on a conceptual |evel, providers have resisted
providing that information in the past. A working group nmade up of
DHSS enpl oyees, providers and consuners has been assenbled to
det erm ne whi ch data shoul d be provided. He expressed concern that
the working group may conme up with a slightly different data set
than what is required in the bill. DHSS would prefer not to have
the retroactive clause as it is likely to generate opposition.

Number 619

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN commrented that the information requested in the
bill is what the |egislature needs. She asked if SB 135 should
i nclude any other information that DHSS needs.

MR. LINDSTROM said in an ideal world, without the retroactive
clause, DHSS will probably have good baseline data for several
years in the future if it begins on July 1. It would be useful for
DHSS collect retroactive data but he suspects that my not be
possi ble as a practical matter.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if there is any way to frane it in terns of
di sput ed cl ai ns.

MR. LI NDSTROM said he did not know and would need time to get nore
i nformation.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN decided to |leave the retroactive clause in the
bill and pass it on to the Senate Judiciary Conmttee, where M.
Li ndstrom coul d present that information.

SENATOR WARD npoved CSSB 135(HES) from conmttee w th individua
reconmendati ons. There being no objection, the notion carried.
#

CONTI NUATI ON_OF THE MEDI CAl D PRESENTATI ON BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

MR BOB LABBE, Director, D vision of Medical Assistance, Departnent

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2001



of Health and Social Services, informed the conmttee that he woul d
continue to provide background information on the Medi caid program
and focus on the potential expansion of Medicaid services. [During
his discussion, M. Labbe referred to a DHSS handout entitled
Medi cai d Fi nanci ng. ]

MR. LABBE expl ai ned that the Medicaid program contains variations
in the amount of the state match for different services. The basic
match rate is 60.13 percent; that rate fluctuates every year, based
on how Al aska's per capita inconme conpares to the national average
per capita inconme. Sone Medicaid services, however, have a fixed
federal match rate: 90 percent for famly planning services; 100
percent for services provided to Alaska Natives; and 72 percent
fromthe block grant for the Denali Kid Care program The Denal
Kid Care programrate will vary every year based on the change in
t he underlying Federal Medical Assistance Percentage (FMAP) rate,
as those two are |inked.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what determ nes the fluctuation in the rate.

MR. LABBE said it is based on how Alaska's per capita incone
conpares to the national per capita inconme. The fornmula is based
on data that is fairly old. For exanple, 1993-1995 data was used
for the 1999 formul a.

MR. LABBE said the rates can go up or down, but DHSS is concerned
that this is a risk area for Al aska because the federal governnent

has changed how it will calculate per capita inconme in general
The new calculation will take effect next year; that change wl|
negatively inpact Al aska so the federal match rate will decrease.

DHSS is working wth Al aska's congressional delegation on that
i ssue right now to avoid a drop next year.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked when that will inpact the State of Al aska's
budget .

MR LABBE said the change will take effect in Qctober of 2001 so it
will affect the 2002 state budget. He pointed out the sane problem
occurred | ast year because Senat or Mirkowski had secured a three-
year arrangenent for Al aska that expired. It is an area that DHSS
has spent a |ot of tine on.

MR. LABBE inforned the commttee that Pro-Share is part of DHSS s
Medi caid financing, but it is being phased out. DHSS has been
allowed to send funds out to certain public facilities and the
noney was returned as a match. The federal governnent is
curtailing that process.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2001



MR. LABBE expl ained that the next section contains data on the
nunber of eligible clients in each category (children, adults, the
el derly, and the disabled) and the costs to serve those clients.
That data is used to project what changes m ght be on the horizon.
Thi s nodel shows the difference between the inpact of new clients
versus the inpact of new costs. If the nunber of clients stays
constant, the budget may increase because of increased costs and
Vi ce versa.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if DHSS has any ability, if the federa
agency reduces its match, to reduce the state portion.

MR. LABBE replied if the federal share goes down, DHSS wi || need
nore state funds to equal the anpbunt of the expenditures. The
ot her option would be to | ower the expenditures and services.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if any legislation ties the amount of state
funds to potential changes in federal funding.

MR LABBE said there was a | anguage section, which was taken out in
the past when this subject was dealt with, that allowed DHSS to
continue budgeting the general fund at the match, assuming if the
federal funds didn't materialize, nore general funds would be nade
avai | abl e.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if DHSS has the ability to go the other way
if, for exanple, the federal match dropped 5 percent m d-year.

MR. LABBE stated DHSS pays the total anobunt for services and is
then reinbursed. |If the federal match dropped, DHSS woul d have to
decide how to handle it.

MR. LABBE referred to page 38 of the handout, entitled Fiscal Year
Anal ysis, and noted DHSS served 76,664 Al askans |ast year; this
year the nunber is 81,178 and about 5,000 people per nonth have
becone eligible.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked how that translates to the general fund
amount and the federal match.

Nunber 1415

MR, LABBE said it is in DHSS s supplenental appropriation. He
t hought the general fund anobunt is $9 mllion while the tota
amount of federal and other funds is $80 million. The next chart
shows the trend line for eligible children from 1996 through 2002.
The eligible nunber increased in 1999 because of the Denali Kid
Care program but DHSS projects that nunber will taper off. The

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2001



nunber of adults receiving services continues to trend downward,
primarily due to welfare reform The nunber of elderly receiving
services has continued to increase but it has not increased as mnuch
as one mght expect given the denographics. He believes that is
because the i ncone standards have remained flat while the younger
retirees tend to have nore incone and assets. The nunber of
di sabled clients continues to increase - that is the nost expensive

group.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked why the nunber continues to increase.

MR LABBE said he believes the increase is due to multiple factors.
First, the baby boom generation is aging. Second, technol ogy has
al l oned people to survive nedical conditions they would not have
survived in the past. Third, nedical services in Al aska have
i nproved so people are staying in the state.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if that nunber includes Tax Equity and
Fi scal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) clients.

MR LABBE said it does include TEFRA children as well.

SENATOR W LKEN suggested that DHSS determ ne the slope of that |ine
inrelation to the increase or decrease of the popul ation.

MR. LABBE said it would be good to get that information but
acknow edged that it is a little harder to get census data on the
di sabl ed popul ati on.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked if Senator WIlken was referring to the
change in the general popul ation.

SENATOR W LKEN sai d he was.

MR. LABBE expl ai ned the next chart contains the nunber of eligible
clients by nonth and the paynent anount by nonth. The overall cost
in FY 01 is $4.4 nmillion over FY 00. The next chart conpares the
anmount of state and federal funds spent between 1991 and 2000. The
general fund costs have increased slightly but nmuch |less so than
the federal fund costs. DHSS has becone nuch nore aggressive in
claimng 100 percent of the federal reinbursenent for Indian Health
Service (IHS) clients. The next chart (page 45) is a bar graph of
Medi cai d expenditures by fund source. Again, the state funds have
remai ned relatively flat conpared to federal funds.

MR. LABBE discussed the Medicaid expenditures by category of
servi ces.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2001



CHAl RMOVAN GREEN noted the chart reinforces the fact that the
hi ghest cost is for the disabled and the elderly.

MR. LABBE pointed out that the elderly receive Medicare so their
expenses are |lower for hospital and physician services because
Medi care is the primary payer. Medi care does not pay for nursing
hone expenses so that is a big ticket item

SENATOR LEMAN asked what kind of expenses would fall in the waiver
costs category.

MR JOHN SHERWDOD, Division of Medical Assistance, said that waiver
costs provide for care coordination, respite care, chore services,
paynent for services in an assisted living facility, and
rehabilitation services for the devel opnental ly di sabl ed.

Nunber 1796

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if those services are part of the wap-
around concept where clients remain in the hone.

MR. SHERWOCOD said they are. He explained that these services are
for people who would qualify for a nursing hone or an institutiona
setting but have opted to be cared for in the comunity.

MR. LABBE added that nursing hone expenditures have remai ned fl at
relative to waivers yet nursing homes cost about five tinmes as nuch
per person. Regarding the developnentally disabled popul ation,
Har borview is no | onger operating so nore of the expenditures show
up on the conmunity-based side of Medicaid. He noted that is a
growi ng area.

CHAl RMOVAN CGREEN asked if anything will cause the nunber of
di sabl ed participants to decrease or whether those clients are
disabled to the extent that they will not |eave the program unl ess
t hey nove.

MR LABBE said the only thing on the horizon is a new effort called
"ticket to work," which focuses on getting persons wth
disabilities into the workforce. The state has received grant
funds fromthe federal governnent to develop that program Sone of
the coordinators are now working in enploynent offices.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if putting the disabled clients into another
programis bei ng addressed in another bill

MR JI M NORDLUND said it could be related to that.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2001



MR. LABBE said the next chart reiterates the issue on nursing hone
costs, which have remained flat relative to the waiver costs, which
continue to grow. DHSS does rate adjustnments in the facilities as
rates increase. The patient base has dropped but costs rise.

CHAl RNWNOMAN GREEN asked about the fl at base.

MR. LABBE expl ai ned the nunber of patient days spent in nursing
honmes has decreased over the |ast several years because people are
bei ng served in conmunity settings.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if clients are noving into nursing hones
later in life.

MR. LABBE said that is true of sonme clients but alternative
services are available so clients do not need a nursing hone
setting as soon. He noted that pharmacy costs are one of the
| ar gest conponents of growth in the Medicaid program which is a
national issue. He expects that issue to be addressed with the
debates on the Medicare prescription drug benefit. He pointed out
that the use of prescription drugs increases as nore sophisticated
drugs are being devel oped to handle conditions. That has hel ped
reduce inpatient hospital costs.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN said the sane applies to the nentally ill
popul ation. She asked whether this would gradually fall off if the
Medi care changes are adopt ed.

MR LABBE said it is hard to tell right now DHSS anticipated that
a Medicare prescription drug benefit would help the state costs in
the sense that people on Medicaid who get Medicare woul d receive
that benefit. The current proposal by President Bush, which he
says is tenporary, would exclude Medicaid clients. However, the
full discussion of a prescription drug benefit for seniors would
help the state if that ever occurs. He expects that debate to take
at | east a couple of years.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN said that will cost "big bucks.™

COW SSI ONER PERDUE poi nted out that both the U S. House and Senate
have i ncluded earmarks in the budget for that. The Senate has put
in $300 billion while the House put in $500 billion for
prescription drug plans this year. President Bush's Hel pi ng Hands
programis mnmuch nore nodest.

MR. LABBE said the next chart shows an increase to 100 percent for

paynments to tribal prograns. The Native health systemis grow ng
so DHSS is trying to nmaxi mze the use of that programto the extent

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2001



possi bl e. He indicated that DHSS pays for those services and is
then reinbursed by the federal governnent. The next chart shows
Medi caid paynents by district. The following chart shows the
nunber of providers in each district and the anount paid to those
provi ders.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE cl arified that the nunber of eligible clients
in each district is the nunber of people who have actually signed
up for services.

MR. LABBE said the | ast page (57) contains the program areas that
DHSS does not currently cover. A Dbill is before the commttee (SB
38) to cover services for breast and cervical cancer. There has
been di scussion within the departnent about covering services for
TB infected individuals. That is a small group. Comunity based
care for persons with Al zheinmer's and rel ated di sorders is one that
the Long Term Care Task Force recommended. He noted a proposal is
bei ng di scussed to cover services for children aging out of foster
care.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what age group that woul d cover.

MR, SHERWOCD answered that it would be for children who age out of
state custody, which is usually at age 18.

MR. LABBE explained that Medicaid would provide health care
coverage until those children turn 21

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if the federal governnment chose 21.

MR. LABBE said it is an option the federal governnent offered to
t he states.

MR. SHERWDOD said he did not think it has to be 21; services could
be provided to age 19.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN commented that famlies are generally able to
cover their children until age 22 or 23 so she was wonderi ng why
that isn't consistent. She asked if the state could opt for 22 or
23.

MR. SHERWOOD said he believes 21 is the maxi num

MR. LABBE said another area of great interest to disability
advocates is coverage for working disabled individuals to a higher
income level. The bill that passed a few years ago allows those
individuals to receive Medicaid Services if their inconme is up to
250 percent of the poverty level. The new proposal is to renove

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2001



that imt altogether. He said the problem for the nost part, is
insurability of persons with disabilities in the workforce.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the incone constraint is not a good
indicator for that population because of the difficulty of
pur chasi ng i nsurance.

MR LABBE said the other piece of that is the scope of the coverage
t hat Medi caid provides, such as personal attendant care, which may
not be covered by nobst insurance conpani es.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN poi nted out that those costs are often a routine
part of settlenents.

MR. LABBE said several states have begun to cover the parents of
children who are covered under prograns simlar to Denali Kid Care.
Research has shown that if parents have access to coverage, they
are nore likely to get coverage for their children. Anot her
possi bl e expansi on of services to adult Medicaid clients could be
preventive and restorative dental services. Currently, Medicaid
covers imediate relief of pain and infection so it is a very
limted benefit. Sone Medicaid clients have very serious problens,
and a nunber of problens could be avoided if preventive care was
of fered.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if, under the current program clients with
dental problens nust be treated in the enmergency room

MR. LABBE said dentists will provide imediate service, but the
current program does not cover annual check-ups for adults.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if any permutation of that is possible.

MR LABBE said adult dental service is on the options |list and that
is covered, but the current statutory definition is limted to
i mredi ate relief of pain. He stated that a bill in Congress [H
600], <called the Famly Qpportunity Act, was part of the
President's proposal.

TAPE 01-32, SIDE B

MR LABBE said that bill would cover disabled children at up to 300
percent of the federal poverty |Ilevel. Ri ght now, children of
hi gher incone | evels can be covered only if they need institutional
care. H 600 would cover a broader group in that it would include
any child that nmeets the test for disability. That bill has not
yet passed Congress but it may be an option after the end of the
year. H 600 al so includes home and community based care services

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 11, 2001



for children under 21 with psychiatric disorders.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the 300 percent of poverty |evel standard
woul d apply to the parents' incone.

MR. LABBE said it applies to the famly's incone. He added there
could be a famly premium of up to 5 percent of incone charged.
There could also be sonme co-pay and the states could al so enrol
the child in a health plan offered through an enpl oyer as | ong as
t he enpl oyer was paying at | east 50 percent of the cost.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the state coul d suppl enent the premumto
t he enpl oyer.

MR LABBE said it coul d.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d she wi shes that was being done with a | ot of
t he opti ons.

MR. LABBE said this is something new so they will see how it plays
out . He pointed out that every year there seens to be a new
option, and there seens to be a |lot of national interest on ways to
deal with uninsured and health care issues.

MR. LABBE said that was the end of his presentation.
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN cal l ed the committee back to order. The commttee
took up SB 116.

#SB 116

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt CSSB 116( HES) as the worki ng docunent
of the coonmttee (Version J). There being no objection, the notion
carried.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked M. Jim Nordlund to cone forward.

MR. JIM NORDLUND, Director of the Division of Public Assistance,
DHSS, explained that the only difference between Version J and the
previ ous version adopted by the conmittee is the addition of
| anguage on page 1, line 11, that reads, "unless the second needy
parent is determ ned under regulations of the departnent to be
physically or nentally unable to perform gainful activity." He
expl ained that |anguage is the status quo of the way both the AFDC
and ARAP prograns operated. |If one parent is incapacitated in a
two-parent famly, the benefit will not be cut in half during the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 11, 2001



sumrer nont hs.
Nunber 2183

SENATOR LEMAN asked what standard is used by the Division of Public
Assi stance to determ ne physical or nental disability for purposes
of work.

MR. NORDLUND replied that definition is in regulation and is in
commttee nenbers' packets.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN noted it is in 7 AAC 45.235. She asked if, when
the legislature passed its welfare reforml egislation several years
ago, it was ahead of Congress and, by the tine the federal
governnent inplenented its law, Alaska's law was a little bit
askew. Al though DHSS has used the standard in the federal |aw, the
court has said the statute nust be corrected so this |anguage
confirms what DHSS has been doi ng.

MR. NORDLUND said that is correct. He pointed out the critica
issue in the court case was renoving the |anguage that refers to
t he unenpl oynent of the famly's principal wage earner. That is
the last remmant of the old AFDC | aw. Wen that "bath water" was
thrown out, the "baby" went with it, the "baby" being a category of
fol ks that had al ways been exenpt ed.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d she has worked closely with DHSS to get this
| egislation to the point where DHSS can live with it until next
year, when this subject will be revisited.

There being no further discussion, SENATOR WARD noved CSSB 116( HES)

from conmttee with individual recommendations. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.
#

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.
TAPE 01-33, SIDE A

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN cal | ed the neeting back to order at 4:05 p.m Al
menbers were present. She announced that the conmttee woul d hear
information from DHSS on the Breast and Cervical Cancer Early
Det ecti on Program The conversation about this topic will be
generic as the commttee does not have the bill [SB 38] before it
at this tinme. Time permtting, DHSS will al so tal k about Medicaid
funding for Alzheimer's and Denentia diseases and any other
prograns that Al aska has had the opportunity to participate in but
has chosen not to.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- April 11, 2001



COWM SSI ONER KAREN PERDUE, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services, inforned commttee nenbers that Mary D ven woul d give an
overvi ew of the screening programand the treatnent program option
and how they fit together.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN not ed the National Council of State Legislatures
publ i shed a basic priner on the federal Medicaid programthat is an
excel l ent source of information.

M5. MARY DI VEN, DHSS, gave the follow ng overview of the screening
program The Center for D sease Control (CDC) runs the Breast and
Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program which is designed to
reduce nortality and norbidity from breast and cervical cancer by
early detection; screening a | arge popul ati on of wonen who are | ow
i ncome and groups of wonen who are the least likely to go in for
annual screening. The CDC runs prograns throughout nost of the
state and wonen can get access through public health centers. Sone
di agnostic providers will, once a woman is screened and found to
have a likelihood of cancer, do a diagnosis of that cancer.
Because there is no funding through the CDC for treatnent of those
cancers, last October Congress passed legislation allowi ng for
treatnment through a Medicaid option with an enhanced state match,
for those wonen di agnosed through the CDC program and for wonen who
have no i nsurance to pay for treatnent.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Diven to review for the conmttee the
pur pose for the original CDC screening programand to explain why
this programwas set up

M5. DI VEN answered that |ow i ncone wonen and wonen anong certain
m nority popul ati ons were dying from breast and cervical cancer in
| ar ger nunbers because they were not getting annual pap snears and
manmograns. The CDC set the program up to reduce the nortality
rate by trying to detect the cancers early.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the CDC or public health system has
al ways coll ected data on diagnoses of breast cancer and whet her
that information is saved in a database.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE said DHSS started a cancer registry in Al aska
in the | ast couple of years.

M5. DIVEN noted the first data fromthat registry is being conpiled
NOW.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN expl ained that she is trying to find out what
CDC s original purpose was and how we have segued to where we are.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- April 11, 2001



COWM SSI ONER PERDUE replied that CDC s original intent was not to
collect data, it was to provide the screening. She clarified that
screeni ng neans that actual nmamography and pap snears are done to
find out if wonen have the di sease.

CHAl RWOMAN GREEN t ook a brief at-ease.

M5. DI VEN said the private diagnostic providers are: the Anchorage
Nei ghbor hood Health Center, Eastern Aleutian Tribes in Cold Bay,
t he Cordova Community Medical Center, two providers in Eagle R ver,
the Interior Neighborhood Health in Fairbanks (screening only), and
Fam |y Pl anning in Kachenmak Bay.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked how a woman gets to the diagnostic provider.

MS. DI VEN answered a woman can go to a screening provider for a
clinical breast exam a nmammogramif the woman is age-eligible, and

a pap snear. If there's an abnornmality on the pap snear, she wl|
go to a diagnostic provider - a gynecology provider. If the
results of the clinical breast exam are abnormal, she will get a

di agnostic mamogram or a fine needle aspiration to determ ne
whet her the lunp is a cyst or a cancerous | unp.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked how wonen find out about this early
det ecti on service.

M5. DIVEN told the conmttee there is a general outreach program
and each conmunity designs its own outreach. Sone providers do "in
reach.”™ They |l ook through their client records to see if their
female clients are age and incone eligible. In Anchorage, the YWA
has a | arge outreach project naned Encore. The YWCA works with the
m ni sterial association and does outreach from downtown through
Mount ai nvi ew and Miul doon to reach wonen in the |owest inconme zip
codes. The two organi zati ons have group gatherings where a provider
gives information to wonen and a list of providers to go to. The
church or other groups nmake arrangenents to transport the wonen for

screeni ng servi ces. In addition, coupons are given to wonmen in
public assistance offices and job placenent offices. |n Fairbanks,
outreach is done through the public health center. In Anchorage,

coupons have gone out in utility bills to wonen living in |ower
income zip codes. Coupons are also enclosed in newsletters for
various groups, for exanple in Asian American newsletters.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if this program woul d not necessarily apply
to a woman who goes to her doctor with a problemand then realizes
how much the diagnosis and treatnent will cost and says, "I can't
afford this."

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- April 11, 2001



M5. DI VEN answered this would only be for wonmen screened through
this federal program

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked how many wonen are screened each year.
MS. DI VEN answered a |little nore than 4, 000.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if Al aska Native wonen are eligible through
the CDC screening but use the Indian Health Service (IHS) if they
need further treatnent.

M5. DI VEN answered yes, as do wonen with health insurance.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Diven to explain how this programw ||
wor k for wonen who have health insurance that get a CDC screening.

M5. DIVEN referred to a chart she provided to the commttee that
provi des a side-by-side conparison of eligibility requirenents for
the screening program and eligibility requirenents for the
treatnent program One of the goals of the CDC programis to
encourage wonen who nmay not be getting screenings because their
deductible is too high to get a screening. However, those wonen
would not be eligible for the treatnent program because their
insurance will pay for it. Many insurance conpani es do not cover
preventive services, including pap snmears, so wonen would be
eligible for a pap snear. | nsurance conpanies mnust pay for
manmogr ans under state |aw. So, wonen with insurance are not
eligible for treatnent because they have coverage.

COWMWM SSI ONER PERDUE added that regarding the issue of the
deducti bl e, the concept behind the screening programis to get as
many wonmen as possible to get screening because the earlier they
are di agnosed, the better their outcones are. So, the reason for
the difference between the screening program and the treatnent
programis that the CDC is trying to encourage the screening.

M5. DIVEN clarified that women with insurance are not eligible for
the treatnent program because they already have coverage so it
woul d be consi dered doubl e di ppi ng.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked if, regarding the screening, wonen can be
uni nsured or underinsured, but regarding treatnent, a wonan i s not
eligible if underinsured, only if uninsured.

M5. DIVEN said that's correct. She repeated that Alaska Native

wonen are eligible for the screening but the treatnment would be
covered at an IHS facility.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- April 11, 2001



CHAl R\AOVAN GREEN asked whether this would refer to soneone who
lives in an area where there is no Indian Health Service facility
but there is a | ocal hospital.

MS. DI VEN expl ained that according to the federal guidelines, a
Native American wonan who lives in New York City where there's no
Indian Health Service facility avail able would be eligible. | f
that woman lives in Bethel where there is an IHS facility
avai |l abl e, she would not be eligible.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if this is not as applicable to Alaska as it
mght be in a high population area wth pockets of Native
Aneri cans.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d yes.

M5. DI VEN added that regardl ess, the federal government will pay 100
percent of the cost. Even if the CDC determ ned that access here
was too limted to be applicable, it would not cost state general
funds, all IHS paynents are 100 percent reinbursable.

MS. DI VEN t hen expl ained that inconme and insurance eligibility for
the screening program is checked every year. Clients sign an
agreenent that says they are incone eligible and their insurance
eligibility is checked. For the treatnment program eligibility is
limted to the duration of treatnent for that cancer and then
eligibility ends.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN expressed concern that the end of treatnent for a
particul ar cancer is a very sketchy date.

MR. LABBE agreed. He said this programdiffers fromthe typica

approach, in ternms of tying eligibility to the conpletion of
treatnment. Usually a client's incone either goes up or sone other
factor nakes the client ineligible. 1In this case, DHSS plans to
use its contractor who does high risk case managenent to track

with the physician and the patient, the course of treatnment. At
the time treatnment is determned to be concluded, DHSS would be
notified and coverage woul d be term nated.

CHAl RNWNOVAN GREEN asked if that client would be covered if she is
di agnosed with ovarian cancer six nonths |ater.

M5. DIVEN said if her breast cancer treatnent is not over, she is,
but if her breast cancer treatnent is over, she would not be.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN poi nted out that ovarian cancer is connected to

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- April 11, 2001



breast cancer so if there is a tie to the previously diagnosed
condition, it raises questions as to how we know where to start,
where to end, and how to forecast the nunber of eligible people.

M5. DI VEN asked if Chairwoman Green was referring to the health
care financing docunent with the questions and answers. She noted
t hat docunment was done by a federal agency and it raised as nany
guestions as it answered.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said breast cancer patients are often still
undergoi ng care six years after they are diagnosed. |f sonething
were to happen after the treatnment was concluded, for exanple a
netastasis, it could be tied to the breast cancer. She expressed
concern about what this approach does to the out years. She said
if the |legislature opens up this program up to people based on a
di agnosi s, then it needs to clearly define what else is included.
She said the Medicaid program is inconsistent, wunfair and
di scrimnatory.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE replied that the health business is frustrating
in that soneone is always just outside of the line. The systemis
a patchwork of care and the lines are arbitrary. She said she
receives probably one letter per week from a person with an
incredibly sad story who was not eligible. She added that the need
is so trenendous that Congress, in its wsdom has said there is no
ot her way, absent a universal access discussion, to get access to
this care. Conm ssioner Perdue said that 26 wonen are di agnosed
each year in Alaska with cervical cancer so she would guess the
nunber of cases of ovarian cancer is simlar.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN i ndi cated that her concern is that once a wonan
has been di agnosed with breast cancer, she is checked for ovarian
cancer as part of the foll ow up.

MS. DI VEN stated that whether a direct causal relationship exists
is probably determined by the physician and eligibility
determ nati ons woul d cone under the managed care piece. Regarding
the asset-testing question, this is a public health screening
program and the goal is to detect the cancers as early as possible
to increase the survival rate. For the treatnment program the neno
from the Health Care Financing Adm nistration says that asset
testing is prohibited because it's tied to the screening program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if other Medicaid prograns are tied to any
CDC screening prograns or whether this is a hybrid. She said it's
a catch-22 though and may as well be tied to one's driver's |license
as it nmakes no sense to say it's got to be done one way because
it's tied to the CDC program

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 11, 2001



COW SSI ONER PERDUE said it's a little nore direct than that.
CHAl RWOVAN GREEN was not sure.

MR LABBE said the cash assistance programis sonewhat anal ogous in
that it guaranteed Medicaid eligibility historically. A person on
SSI or AFDC qualified for Medicaid.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN st at ed those prograns are needs-based and clients
have to lay out their assets: bank accounts, and real estate. This
program requi res nothing and doesn't even all ow anyone to ask.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said that the early detection programis nost
simlar to TEFRA

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if inconme is disregarded under the TEFRA
program

COW SSI ONER PERDUE explained the income of the child is
consi dered; the income of the parents is disregarded. The concept
is the same in that the treatnent is a major expense so it wll
have a maj or inpact on the famly.

MR. LABBE said for exanple, treatnent for a disabling condition.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE poi nted out the famly can have a fair anount
of noney, but the child' s incone is what determnes eligibility.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN felt the concept is not the sanme because the early
detection programis for the adult who has nmade the choice, for

what ever reason, legitinate or poor, to not have insurance
coverage. She expressed concern that every tine we go down this
path we renove anot her group of people froman insurance pool. The

Denali Kid Care program took 17,000 people out of the insurance
pool and as we ratchet down the nunber of people who buy insurance,
we nmeke it |l ess possible in a state of so few people, many of whom
are under self-insured plans already, to get reasonably priced
i nsurance. She nmintained that participants of health care plans
have been sliced out to such a fine point already that she can't
i magi ne how t he conprehensi ve health insurance will continue to be
funded. She said this is a bigger problemthan the extension of
CDC free screening to breast and cervical cancer and funding health
care based on a diagnosis, which she thinks is a very, very
dangerous path to go on because she is not an advocate of
soci al i zed nedi ci ne.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE conment ed that the small popul ation in Al aska

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- April 11, 2001



pl us the high nunber of federal insurees, such as active mlitary
and veterans, already chops out a higher proportion of people from
the private insurance market than in any other state so that is one
vari abl e Al aska has always faced. Plus, Al aska has a hi gher nunber
per capita of small business people, businesses of 25 enpl oyees or
| ess or self enployed, and | ots of seasonal people. Al aska has had
a heck of a road with this pool and the only product out there for
that individual who gets sick and needs the coverage is the
Conpr ehensi ve Heal th I nsurance Association (CH A), which requires a
wai ting period to protect the actuarial cherry picking of the pool.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN said she would prefer to see legislation go in a
direction to really help people with insurance over a long term
not just for one diagnosis and the duration of that illness. She
asked if, while a wonen is covered under this insurance, she were
to break her ankle, whether she would be covered for that under
auxiliary services.

M5. DI VEN said she woul d be.
Nunmber 397

SENATOR LEMAN expressed concern that people ought to assert sone
responsibility. He said when he hears testinony from people who
say they can't afford insurance and he sees how they spend their
noney, he wonders how to hel p them nake good lifestyle choices so
that insurance can be provided. He questioned how nmuch incone a
person woul d receive and be at 250 percent of the poverty |evel.

CHAl RWOMAN GREEN said it is about $50,000 for a famly of four.

SENATOR LEMAN t hought that at $50,000 a person ought to be able to
participate and share in a cost to be a participant in
responsibility. He noted the state is not doing anything to
encour age people to nake the right choices and while this program
may be for a good cause the state needs to get people to plan
because bad things m ght happen.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE poi nted out that one problemis that the cost
of insurance depends on the profession a person chooses. A smal

busi ness person mght purchase insurance through the Al umi
Associ ation or the latest snmall enployer coverage pool but the
premumw || be nuch higher than coverage for a state enpl oyee or

school district enployee. The cost of insurance is very
discrimnatory to the profession people choose. In A aska a |ot of
people are attached to the formal insurance system (federal and
state) and then there are a lot of small markets that are

unorgani zed. The cost is very high for sonme of those insurances.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 11, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN agreed regarding full service insurance but he asked
about catastrophic insurance coverage because a $30,000 hit or a
$100,000 hit will devastate a |ot of people. Mbst people can work
off a $1,000 cost. He noted if the state had a fund that could
cover catastrophic illnesses that everybody participates in to
avoi d adverse sel ection, then everybody in the world mght want to
cone to Alaska if they've got bad things happening and that fund
woul d be driven into bankruptcy. |If that could be avoided, part of
everyone's permanent fund dividend could go into a fund. If you
t ake the 100, 000 peopl e who are uninsured or severely underinsured,
tinmes $2,000, the fund would have $200 million. That could be a
good source of noney for catastrophic care.

SENATOR DAVI S sai d she appreciates the fact that Chai rwoman G een
wants to |ook at spending for the Medicaid program and she
under stands Senator Leman's comment about personal responsibility,
but the CDC decided to put nonies out there so people could get
screened because there is a need. People died because they weren't
di agnosed early enough to get the treatnent that they needed. Wen
peopl e are screened early and get treatnent, they have a better
chance of surviving. She said she knows people, through work and
personal relationships, who could not afford even $1000 for a
catastrophic illness program Many people don't draw a permanent
fund dividend because their checks are being taken fromthem They
m ght owe the IRS or student |oans or they m ght have owed a debt
that soneone got first dibs at their dividend. This early
screening programapplies to a small group of people. O the 4,000
peopl e screened, 35 were diagnosed. Those 4,000 people woul dn't
have come for screening had they had insurance or the noney to pay
for it. They woul d have gone sonewhere privately because they
woul dn't want to come to the public trough. She thought a program
such as Senator Leman described would take sone tine to work out.
In the neantine, 70 wonen could benefit fromthis Medicaid option
at a cost of $175,000 to the state. She felt it would be worth
doing while the legislature begins to work on a |ong term program

SENATOR DAVI S said she has a problemw th bringing newclients into
the program and then being forced to cut services. She suggested
wor king on that area and suggested that a long termtask force is a
vi abl e sol ution.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN sai d her frustration is howto justifiably say the
programwi || cover only these two diagnoses if a person is at 250
percent of the poverty |evel when people with different diagnoses
are at 135 percent of the poverty level and don't qualify for
anything. Suddenly an arbitrary rate is applied to this group of
breast and cervical cancer clients. However, the state is under

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- April 11, 2001



the constraints of the federal Medicaid instruction packet. She

noted 70 wonmen will be eligible; 28 of those are Al aska Native
wonen who will receive services fromthe IHS, |eaving 42 wonen.
The state will pay $175,000 and the federal government will rmatch

that up to about $525,000. That will cover about $10,000 to 12, 000
per woman for the |ife of that breast cancer incident, which she is
sure is woeful ly inadequate.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE said it wll cover that anpbunt for one year.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN said that would cover maybe 1/7 or 1/10 of the
cost of surgery, and would not include oncology, radiation, or
chenot her apy.

MR. LABBE said DHSS served about 300 wonen |ast year in the
Medi cai d program who had breast and cervical cancer. He |ooked at
the individual recipient dollars and they range $173 to $69, 000.
The nunbers are based on the fiscal year, so the $173 cost m ght
have been for one doctor's visit at the end of the fiscal year or
before the person noved out of the state. The hi gh nunber was
probably due to the fact that client had many services during that
one year. But using that range, DHSS cane up with those estinmates
by determ ning an average across all services to conme up with a per
menber, per nonth or per year cost.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked if DHSS is dealing with the range of the
full true and conplete fee that the hospital charges for that
servi ce.

MR. LABBE said it is not. DHSS sets rates for hospital paynents.
It generally reinburses the fair rate for reasonable cost rather
than actual charges. Regarding the physician schedul e, DHSS pays a
fee that is typically |Iower than the charges and yet physicians are
willing to see Medicaid patients. Physicians are not required to
participate in the Medicaid program it is voluntary.

COW SSIONER PERDUE clarified that about 6,000 providers are
enrolled in the Medicaid program

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked if that includes clinics, doctors, nurses,
t her api sts, masseuses, chiropractors, and doctors.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE said it does. She hoped that many insurance
conpani es are not paying 100 percent.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d she admires DHSS for getting those rates but

t hey have nothing to do with the reality of what it costs to go to
the hospital for the rest of the world. She estinmated that any

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- April 11, 2001



surgical procedure that requires a surgeon, a back-up, an
anest hesi ol ogi st, after care, and one night in a hospital, would
cost a mnimum $15, 000 to $20,000. So, the information that says
the state is going to pay for coverage for breast and cervical
cancer is not really accurate.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE responded by saying that based on DHSS' s
experience of 300 wonmen a year that are already covered, the per
unit cost per year is x. |It's not saying that a full blow stage 3
cancer costs x anount, it is saying the public cost on average,
based on experience, is this nunber.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said that this is an entitlenent program  DHSS
has forecast 42 non-Native Al aska wonen coming in the door. If 7
cone in, it'd be a great year but, if 117 conme in, the door is
open. DHSS could have estimated $10 or $500,000 as the state fund
anmount .

COW SSI ONER PERDUE explained that it's based on the nunber of
wonen who have been screened over a period of years.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked what the prediction was for the nunber of
children who would be insured under Denali Kid Care when that
program started.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE said it is right at the predicted |evel.
CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if that nunber was 17, 000.
COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said it was.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN sai d she never heard that.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE sai d that was the nunber when the program was
ranped up.

MR. LABBE agreed and said DHSS started out assumng a smaller
nunber based on the data it had fromthe Census Bureau.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN said the fiscal note inplies that the cost wll
continue to go up every year and asked whether that is based on an
increase in the cost of services, an increase in the nunber of
peopl e com ng through the door or whether it is a reduction in the
federal portion.

MR. LABBE said the projected cost increases were essentially an

estimate of DHSS s traditional expectation, an 8 percent increase,
which is a mx of nore people and higher costs of services. It was

SENATE HES COW TTEE -23- April 11, 2001



not an el aborate analysis of this particular group.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN noted that after five years the increase is
substantial and, based on everything else, the program is not
likely to go up and |l evel off so the expectation is that there wll
be nore and nore noney each year. She asked what assurance the
state has that the federal governnment will maintain its |evel of
partici pation.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said it is in federal statute.
CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked if DHSS has a contract for a period of tine.
TAPE 01-33, Side B

MR. LABBE t hought that Congress m ght change the statute when it
appropriates the noney.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE added the statutes don't expire but they're
silent on the question of howlong they're in place. She has never
seen Congress repeal one in ternms of what coverage they offer.

CHAIl RWOVAN GREEN asked if Congress has reduced the federal
participation rate.

COMWM SSIONER PERDUE said Congress has not but that is a
possibility.

MR. LABBE said the match fornula has not been changed since the
program started.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE conmmented that one of the variables in the
program is what Senator G een was describing and that is the
stacking effect. Sonme of the 42 wonmen won't |eave the program
after one year because they're not well, and new wonen wll cone
in. DHSS doesn't know how many and how fast they' Il nove through
the system but some will not nmake it. The cost will increase to
sone degree because it won't have just 40 new peopl e every year.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said the general tinme-frane with breast cancer is
five years before one goes back to pre-cancer status. She asked
how CDC devel oped the part of the program where treatnment is
consi dered conpl et e.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE said DHSS will have to work on that should this

bill pass, and it will be difficult. DHSS will have to rely on
physi cians for that determ nation.

SENATE HES COW TT